
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF RHODE ISLAND

THOMAS BLANCHETTE,
Plaintiff

v.

ELECTRIC BOAT CORPORTAION,
& GENERAL DYNAMICS CORPORATION

Defendants

i . \A·
. "'"..... .- ,'-a;

COMPLAINT

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

The action is commenced by Thomas Blanchette (hereinafter "Plaintiff' or

"Blanchette") against Electric Boat Corporation and General Dynamics Corporation

(hereinafter "Defendants" or "Employer") in order to remedy or seek relief for the

Defendants' unlawful and discriminatory employment practices~ in violation of The Age

Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA)~ 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq.~ the Americans with

Disabilities Act~ in addition to other federal state and common law claims.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Jurisdiction of the Court is invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § § 45l~ 1331~ 1337~

1343~ and 1345. The action is authorized and instituted pursuant to pertinent provisions

of the ADEA~ 29 U.S.C. § 621-634.

2. Considerations of judicial economy ~ convenience~ and fairness to the litigants

warrant exercise of the court's supplemental jurisdiction with respect to Plaintiff's state
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law claims. Plaintiff's state claims are so related to Plaintiff's federal claims that they

form part of the same case or controversy. The court has supplemental jurisdiction over

Plaintiff's state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1367(a).

3. Venue is proper in the district pursuant to inter alii!, 28 U.S.C. 1391 (b),

because:

a. The alleged unlawful practices occurred and/or are continuing to occur

within the State ofRhode Island, and in the judicial district;

b. all records relevant to the alleged unlawful practices are maintained and

administered in the Defendants' place of business in the Town of North

Kingstown, Rhode Island.

c. the Plaintiff would not have been prevented from enjoying all rights,

benefits, and privileges of his employment, as a full-time employee of

Defendants, in the Town of North Kingstown, Rhode Island, but for the

Defendants' unlawful practices.

4. On or about November 30, 2006 Blanchette timely filed a formal Charge of

Discrimination with the Rhode Island Commission for Human Rights ("RICHR") and the

U.S. Equal Employment Commission ("EEOC"), alleging that he had been discriminated

against on the basis of his age and disability-RICHR # 07 EAG 125; EEOC #: 16J2006

00080.
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5. The Plaintiff has complied with all jurisdictional prerequisites and conditions

precedent to the filing of the action in federal court, in each of its counts, including

requesting Right To Sue Authorization, if necessary, from the pertinent administrative

agency(ies). (Attachment A and B.)

THE PARTIES

6. The Plaintiff, Thomas Blanchette, an individual, is a resident of Tiverton,

Rhode Island.

7. The Defendant, Electric Boat Corporation is a foreign corporation, with a

principal place of business located at 75 Eastern Point Rd., Groton, CT. Defendant

Electric Boat Corporation owns and operates the Quonset Point Facility located at 165

Dillabar Ave., N. Kingstown, RI 02852. The Defendant, General Dynamics Corporation

is a foreign corporation with a principal place of business located at 2941 Fairview Park

Drive, Suite 100, Falls Church, VA. The Defendants are sufficiently joined relative to

the ownership, direction and control of the Quonset Facility that they should be

considered jointly and severally liable.

8. At all times material to the allegations of the Complaint, the Defendants have

continuously, and do now, employ at least 100 or more employees in the State of Rhode

Island.
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9. At all times material to the allegations of the Complaint, the Defendants have

continuously been engaged in an industry affecting commerce within the meaning of

those terms as applicable to pertinent provisions of the ADEA, as defined in § 11(g) of

the ADEA (29 U.S.C.S. § 630(g) and § 11(h) of the ADEA (29 U.S.C.S. § 630(h)).

10. At all times material to the allegations of the Complaint, Defendants were and

are an "employer" within the meaning of that term as applicable in pertinent provisions of

the ADEA, as defined in § l1(b) of the ADEA (29 USCS § 630(b)), and as interpreted

pursuant to the other statutes at issue in this Complaint.

11. Blanchette is an "individual" within the meaning of pertinent provisions

defining that term under the ADEA, and an individual covered under the provisions of

that statute, and as interpreted pursuant to the other statutes at issue in this Complaint.

12. At all times material to the action, the Defendants were and are an employer

covered under and subject to the provisions of R.I.G.L. § 42-112-1 et seq. (The Rhode

Island Civil Rights Act of 1990). At all times material to the action, Plaintiff was

protected under the terms ofR.I.G.L. § 42-112-1 et seq.

13. On information and belief, and at all times pertinent to this Complaint,

managers and supervisors of the Defendants, and any others engaging in discriminatory

workplace treatment of the Plaintiff, were each a person acting in furtherance of the

interest of, on behalf of, and as the agent of the Defendants, with respect to all allegations
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of this Complaint, and they knew or should reasonably have known of their unlawful

conduct.

FACTS APPLICABLE TO EACH COUNT

14. Plaintiff was born on February 22, 1956, and was approximately 50 years of

age at the time ofthe incidents cited in this Complaint.

15. Plaintiff has worked for the Defendants, for approximately 27 years.

16. Plaintiff suffers from severe stress, anxiety, depression and related

symptoms, all of which affect his major life activities. At all times he could perfonn the

essential functions ofhis job, with or without reasonable accommodations.

17. During his tenure of employment, Plaintiff compiled an excellent

productivity and disciplinary record, meeting or exceeding the Defendants' legitimate

expectations.

18. During 2005, Plaintiff was forced by his Employer to take a leave of absence

for the false and pretextual reason that he had engaged in unlawful workplace conduct.

19. At that time, Plaintiff was attempting to process a Workers' Compensation

claim through his Employer.
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20. During Plaintiff's leave, he underwent testing and treatment by various

physicians, and full cooperated with the employer in seeking assistance through the

Employer's Employee Assistant Program.

21. In early December 2005, Plaintiffwas cleared to return to work without

restriction by both the counselor to whom he had been referred by the Employer's

Employee Assistant Program, as well as by his personal physician.

22. Plaintiffmade repeated unsuccessful requests to his employer that he be

permitted to return to work.

23. Plaintiff is fully capable of performing all of the essential functions of his

job, with or without reasonable accommodation.

24. The Employer repeatedly refused to return the Plaintiff to work, leaving him

without income or any way to support his family.

25. Plaintiff was reinstated to his position on or about May 7, 2007, months after

he informed the Defendants that he had been medically cleared and was available to

return to work and only after filing a Charge of Discrimination.

26. Plaintiff was discriminated against on the basis of his age and disability status

and has been retaliated against because he attempted to assert his rights to a lawful

employment environment.
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27. But for the Defendants' intention to discriminate against Plaintiff on the basis

of his age and disability, the Plaintiff would not have been subjected to discriminatory

terms and conditions of employment.

28. The Defendants have intentionally and willfully engaged in a senes of

unlawful acts, practices, policies, and procedures in violation of state and federal law

intended to prevent employment discrimination based on age and disability.

29. The Defendants' conduct reflects, in both purpose and effect, a blatant,

willful, and/or malicious pattern of discrimination and unlawful treatment against the

Plaintiff. Such conduct has involved an intentional, reckless, and/or callous indifference

to the statutorily protected rights of the Plaintiff. The Defendants knowingly and

purposefully subjected the Plaintiff to humiliating discriminatory and unlawful treatment

as a result ofhis age and disability.

30. The wrongful actions by Defendants and their agents complained of herein

were taken without justification, excuse, or defense, but rather were taken in a

purposefully discriminatory and unlawful manner, and have caused the Plaintiff lost

employment, lost wages, lost benefits, humiliation, embarrassment, emotional and

physical harm, and other damages.
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COUNT I
RHODE ISLAND CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1990

R.I.G.L. SECTION 42-112-1
DISCRIMINATORY TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

31. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1-30 above are incorporated herein by

reference in their entirety.

32. The Defendants' discriminatory conduct, policies, and practices are violative

of the provisions of the Rhode Island Civil Rights Act of 1990, R.I.G.L. 42-112-1 et seq.,

by:

a. interfering with Plaintiffs right to avail himself of the full and equal benefit

and protection of state and federal laws intended to prevent discrimination in

the workplace based on age and disability;

b. depriving him of the status, benefits, privileges, and other terms and

conditions accruing to the employment relationship to which he was entitled;

c. treating him in a hostile, demeaning, and otherwise unlawful manner based on

his age and disability;

d. causing him lost income and benefits, humiliation, physical and emotional

injury, as well as harm to his personal and professional reputation.

33. The unlawful practices engaged in by the Defendants were motivated by

impermissible and unlawful considerations concerning Blanchette's age and disability

status. Such practices include, but are not limited to, the Defendants:

a) Refusing to return Blanchette to work based on his age and

disability status; and
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b) Subjecting Blanchette to discriminatory tenns and conditions of

employment because of his age and disability status.

34. But for the Defendants' intent to discriminate against Plaintiff because of his

age and disability status, the Defendants would not have subjected him to discriminatory

tenns and conditions of employment.

35. The Defendants purposefully, maliciously, and without justification or excuse,

took discriminatory action with respect to Plaintiff's employment because of Plaintiffs

age and disability status. The Defendants' conduct has unlawfully deprived Plaintiff of

his employment, income, benefits, privileges, promotions, and other tenns and conditions

accruing to the employment relationship to which he was entitled; has caused hann to his

reputation; and has caused him humiliation, as well as physical and/or emotional injury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered herein against Defendants,

jointly and severally, and in favor of Plaintiff for all damages and equitable relief

available, as hereinafter requested.

COUNT II
AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT

29 U.S.c. § 621 ET SEQ.
DISCRIMINATORY TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

36. Paragraphs 1-30 above are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety.
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37. The Defendants' conduct in refusing to reinstate the Plaintiff, and as otherwise

referenced in paragraphs 1-30, above, was motivated solely by an intent to discriminate

against Plaintiffon the basis of his age, in violation of the ADEA, 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq.

38. The Defendants' conduct in refusing to return the Plaintiff to work, and as

otherwise referenced in paragraphs 1-30, above, was motivated in part by an intent to

discriminate against Plaintiff on the basis of his age, in violation of the ADEA, 29 U.S.C.

§ 621 et seq.

39. The conduct by Defendants referenced in paragraphs 1-30, above, represents

a willful violation of § 4(a)(l) and (2) of the ADEA, 29 U.S.C. § 623 (a)(l) and (2), and

other sections, by continuously maintaining age-based employment policies which have

the intended objective of removing qualified employees, including Plaintiff, from

employment solely on the basis ofage.

40. Defendants willfully engaged in a policy or practice of arbitrarily and

summarily denying Plaintiff employment opportunities, in violation of the ADEA, 29

U.S.C. § 621 et seq.

41. The Defendants' discriminatory conduct, policies, and practices regarding

retention and job opportunities are violative of the provisions of the ADEA, 29 U.S.c. §

621 et seq., by:
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a.) interfering with Plaintiffs right to avail himself of the full and equal benefit

and protection of state and federal laws intended to prevent discrimination in

the workplace based on age;

b.) depriving him of the status, benefits, privileges, and other terms and

conditions accruing to the employment relationship to which he was entitled;

c.) treating him in a hostile, demeaning, and otherwise unlawful manner based on

his age;

d.) causing him lost income and benefits, humiliation, physical and emotional

injury, as well as irreparable harm to his personal and professional reputation.

42. The unlawful practices engaged in by the Defendants were motivated by

impermissible and unlawful considerations concerning Blanchette's age. Such practices

including, but are not limited to, Defendants:

a.) Refusing to return Plaintiff to work because ofhis age;

b.) Subjecting the Plaintiff to discriminatory terms and conditions of

employment.

43. But for the Defendants' intent to discriminate against Plaintiff because of his

age, Defendants would not have subjected him to discriminatory terms and conditions of

employment.

44. The Defendants' conduct has unlawfully deprived Plaintiff of income,

benefits, privileges, promotions, and other terms and conditions accruing to the
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employment relationship to which he was entitled; has caused irreparable harm to his

reputation and professional mobility; and has caused him extreme humiliation, as well as

physical and emotional injury.

45. By its conduct, the Employer has failed in its affirmative duty under the

ADEA, by its failure to exercise reasonable care and diligence, to maintain a work

environment free of discriminatory insult, intimidation, or abuse directed at older

workers.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered herein against Defendants,

jointly and severally and in favor of Plaintiff for all damages and equitable relief

available, as hereinafter requested.

COUNT III
RHODE ISLAND FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ACT

R.I.G.L. Section 28-5-1 et seq.
DISCRIMINATORY TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

46. Paragraphs 1-30 above are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety.

47. The Defendants' conduct in refusing to return the Plaintiff to work, and as

otherwise referenced in Paragraphs 1-30, above, was motivated either solely, or in part,

by an intent to discriminate against the Plaintiff on the basis ofhis age and disability

status, in violation of the Rhode Island Fair Employment Practices Act (RIFEPA).
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48. The conduct by Defendants referenced in paragraphs 1-30, above, represent a

willful violation of the FEPA, by continuously maintaining age-based employment

policies which have the intended objective of removing qualified employees, including

Plaintiff, from employment with the Defendants solely on the basis of age and disability

status.

49. Defendants willfully engaged in a policy or practice ofarbitrarily and

summarily denying Plaintiff employment opportunities, in violation of the RIFEPA.

50. The Defendants' discriminatory conduct, policies, and practices regarding

workers in the protected age category, including Blanchette, violate the RIFEPA, by

a. interfering with the Plaintiffs right to avail himself of the full and equal benefit

of state and federal laws preventing workplace discrimination based on age and disability

status;

b. depriving him of the status, benefits, conditions, and privileges of employment;

c. treating him in a hostile, demeaning and unlawful manner, based on age and

disability status;

d. causing him lost income, benefits, humiliation, emotional injury and other

harm.

51. The unlawful practices engaged in by Defendants were motivated by

unlawful considerations concerning Plaintiff's age and disability status. Such practices

included, but were not limited to, the Defendants refusing to return the Plaintiff to work
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due to his age and disability status, and making impennissible considerations of age and

disability status a factor in employment decisions.

52. But for the Defendants' intent to discriminate against Plaintiff because of

his age and disability status, Plaintiff would not have suffered the adverse employment

actions referenced above.

53. The Defendants' conduct has unlawfully deprived Plaintiff of income,

benefits, privileges, promotions, and other rewards accruing to the employment

relationship to which he was entitled; has caused irreparable hann to his reputation and

professional mobility; has caused him humiliation, physical and emotional injury, and

otherhann.

54. By their intentional misconduct, Defendants have failed in their affinnative

duty under the RIFEPA to maintain a work environment free ofdiscriminatory insult,

intimidation, and other misconduct directed at workers in the protected age category and

with disability status.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered herein against

Defendants, jointly and severally, and in favor of Plaintiff for all damages and equitable

relief available, as hereinafter requested.
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COUNT IV
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

ADA-42 USC SEC.12117
Discriminatory Terms and Conditions of Employment

Retaliation

55. Paragraphs 1-30 are herein incorporated by reference in their entirety.

56. At all times material to the allegations alleged in this Complaint, the

Plaintiffwas a qualified individual with a disability within the meaning of the ADA,

and/or the Defendants perceived him as having a disability.

57. Despite his disability or impairment, Plaintiff was able to perform all of

the essential functions of his position, with or without reasonable accommodation.

58. The Defendants have engaged in unlawful employment practices in

violation of the ADA, sec.l02(a), 102(b)(l), and 102(b)(5)(B), 42 USC sec 12112(a),

12112(b)(1) and 12112(b)(5)(B), in addition to other sections.

59. But for the Defendants' intent to discrimination against the Plaintiffon the

basis of his status as a qualified person with a disability , Defendants would not have

engaged in the conduct alleged in this Complaint.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered herein against

Defendants, jointly and severally, and in favor of Plaintiff for all damages and equitable

relief available, as hereinafter requested.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered herein against

Defendants, jointly and severally, and in favor of Plaintiff for all damages and equitable

relief available, including, but not limited to:

a.) an order that the Defendants institute and carry out practices, policies and

programs which provide equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals,

regardless ofage and disability status;

b.) an order that the Defendants make whole the Plaintiff with appropriate lost

earnings, back pay, front pay, the value of lost benefits, and interest, in amounts to be

proved at trial, and other affIrmative relief necessary to eradicate the effects of their

unlawful employment practices, including, but not limited to the hiring of Plaintiff to the

position of employment at issue, or some other appropriate and equivalent position, with

appropriate increases, benefits, status, and promotional opportunities;

c.) an order that the Defendants make whole the Plaintiff by providing for any

additional pecuniary losses, including but not limited to any costs incurred for health and

life insurance premiums, medical treatment while without insurance, and the cost of

seeking new employment, and compensation for the damage done to his valuable

reputation, in amounts to be determined at trial;

d.) an order the Defendants make whole the Plaintiff by providing compensation

for non-pecuniary losses, including but not limited to emotional pain, suffering,

humiliation, and mental anguish in amounts to be proven at trial, including an appropriate

award of compensatory damages;
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e.) grant attorney's fees and the costs of the action;

f.) grant punitive or exemplary damages, as appropriate to punish the Defendants

for their malicious conduct and/or for their reckless and/or callous indifference to the

statutorily protected rights of the Plaintiff;

g.) grant an appropriate award of prejudgment interest, including an award of

interest for all damages awarded to the Plaintiff from the date the cause of action accrued,

pursuant to R.I.G.L. Section 9-21-10;

h.) grant such further relief as the court deems necessary and proper.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Plaintiff hereby demands trial by jury of all issues pertinent to the causes in the

Complaint triable as of right by jury.

~~~~,{j'W1
Stephen . Fanni g #3900 J
305 South Main treet
Providence, RI 02903
401-272-8250
401-272-4520 (FAX)
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